

Town of Vienna

Charles A. Robinson Jr.
Town Hall
127 Center Street South
Vienna VA. 22180

Meeting Minutes Town Council Meeting

Monday, October 23, 2023

8:00 PM

Charles Robinson Jr. Town Hall, 127 Center St. South

Invocation: John Russo, Baha'i Community of the Holy Comforter

Mayor Colbert called on John Russo, Baha'i Community of the Holy Comforter to provide the evening's invocation.

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America

1. Roll Call

Present:

7 - Council Member Chuck Anderson, Council Member Ray Brill Jr., Council Member Nisha Patel, Council Member Steve Potter, Council Member Ed Somers, Council Member Howard J. Springsteen and Mayor Linda Colbert

2. Acceptance of the Minutes:

A. 23-4063 Acc

Acceptance of the Council Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2023 and October 2, 2023

The Regular Council Meeting minutes of September 25, 2023 and October 2, 2023 were approved as presented.

A motion was made that the Minutes be . The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

3. Receipt of petitions and communications from the Public that are not on the Agenda. (Limited to 3 minutes per issue and no formal action can be taken this evening)

Mayor Colbert called for comments from the public.

Gregg Monday, 209 Owaissa Ct., SE

"I have lived here since 1964 and I have a lot of pride in Vienna. I have a major issue with some of the things going on, primarily the new sidewalk program. I feel like the work that we are getting is subpar; it's not acceptable for the Town. I'd be glad to walk with anyone here to show you the problems. I can list the issues – I don't know what specifications or requirements were bid to the contractor but I can't imagine that they are meeting whatever they were. If they are acceptable to what was bid, then I suggest that the program be stopped, respecified and rebid because the work, to me, is very subpar. My back ground includes over forty years with a general contractor in Northern Virginia. We had a concrete division, so I have a background in concrete. I feel that if you go and look at Adahi Rd., Elmor Dr., Moore Ave. and look at the quality of the work compared to the new home it may abut you will see the difference in quality. I don't feel it's' satisfactory. In 2022 I called Public Works, met with an inspector, met with the project manager and talked with the Public Works director. I was assured something would happen. I

made suggestions, but I don't see that anything has been done. In 2023 they started curb and gutter replacement in my neighborhood. I called again and questioned that given the same contractor, who would be doing the quality control on the work. I was told 'We will take care of it. We have an inspector". If you look at the work (I will give them the benefit of the doubt, it's not as noticeable on curb and gutter because it doesn't stand out), but when you look at the side walk since 2023 on Moore Ave. and Elmore Dr. you'll see what I'm talking about.

Thank you for hearing me out. And again, I will walk with anyone and gladly show you what the issues are, but I think it's a serious problem for what the Town of Vienna residents pay taxes to receive and for what we expect from the Town."

4. Reports/Presentations

A. <u>23-4015</u> Presentation of GFOA's Distinguished Budget Award

As the 29th consecutive year the Town has received this award, recognition is given to the entire finance department and especially to Christina Williams, Budget Manager and Marion Serfass, Director of Finance, who led the budget process.

B. 23-4051 2023 International Economic Development Council (IEDC) Awards

In September 2023, the Economic Development Division received two 2023 International Economic Development Council Excellence in Economic Development Awards, the Gold Award in the Special Event Category for Vienna Restaurant Week and the Bronze Award in the General Purpose Award category for the Explore Vienna VA Website. Mayor Colbert recognized Natalie Monkou, Director, Economic Development and Ashley Curtis, Economic Development Staff.

A. Report and Inquiries of Council Members

Mayor Colbert called on Council for comments.

Council Member Patel wished a happy Navratri to all South Asian Americans.

Council Member Springsteen reminded all of the annual Turkey Trot scheduled for November 19, 2023, an event that has grown to include over 2,000 runners. He also reported that antique fire truck has been repaired so Santa Claus will have a way to get around this Christmas season.

Council Member Somers shared his excitement regarding the continuing work on the Maple Ave/Church St streetscape project. He particularly congratulated Staff on the explanatory signage.

Council Member Potter remarked on the recent activity at 444 Maple Avenue. Fences are down and landscape work has begun. He requested a report from David Levy, Director, Planning and Zoning.

Director Levy reported that working with Planning and Zoning staff, with the Department of Public Works and with Steve Briglia, Town Attorney, some progress has been made to improve the condition of the site while the developer waits for market conditions to improve prior to building. Public Works and Planning and Zoning staff conducted a site visit accompanied by the site manager who agreed that the site was not up to standard. Despite regular contact with the developer by Planning and Zoning, no improvement of the site condition has been made. Given

the uncertainty of project commencement, Director Levy determined that the site would need to be brought into better condition. To that end a strongly worded letter was sent by the Town Attorney which resulted in the scheduling of a meeting set for October 30, 2023. In the interim some landscaping work has begun but there is no guarantee how this will progress. The Planning and Zoning Staff will remain vigilant.

Council Member Brill reminded Council of the Halloween Parade on Wednesday, October 25, 2023. He also noted the start of flu season and urged everyone to get a flu shot.

Council Member Somers referenced earlier resident comments regarding the quality of work on the new sidewalks throughout Town. He requested feedback from Staff.

B. Report of the Town Manager

Town Manager Payton called on Leslie Herman, Director, Parks and Recreation to introduce her new staff member. Director Herman welcomed the new deputy director Nicole Falceto.

C. Report of the Mayor

Mayor Colbert noted that we are living in very turbulent times. In light of this she wanted to stress that every resident deserves to live in a safe and peaceful environment and intolerance toward any religion or culture is not the Vienna way. It is her hope that this community will treat each other with the dignity and respect that it always has.

D. Proposals for Additional Items to the Agenda

E. Closed Session Report

E. Closed Session Report

23-4068 Closed Session Report

It was moved that the members of the Vienna Town Council be polled to affirm that a Closed Session was held on October 23, 2023 in accordance with Virginia Code, Section 2.2-3711.A.(1), for discussion or consideration of personnel matters, specifically the interviewing of individuals for consideration of appointment and/or reappointment to Town Boards and Commissions.

It was further moved that the Certification Resolution be adopted in accordance with State Statutes, and that the Town Clerk is authorized to execute the Certification Resolution.

And it was further moved that the Closed Session be continued to Monday, November 13, 2023 at 7:00 PM in accordance with Virginia Code, Section 2.2-3711.A.(1), for discussion or consideration of personnel matters, specifically the interviewing of individuals for consideration of appointment and/or reappointment to Town Boards and Commissions.

Motion, Council Member Somers; second, Council Member Anderson. Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved to reappoint Gina Womack to the Pedestrian Advisory Committee for a two-year term. Said term shall commence October 26, 2023 and expire October 26, 2025.

It was moved to reappoint Mala Persuad to the Conservation and Sustainability Commission for a two-year term. Said term shall commence October 26, 2023 and expire October 26, 2025.

Motion, Council Member Somers; second, Council Member Springsteen. Motion carried unanimously.

5. Public Hearings

A. 23-4020

Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to Town Code Chapters 17, 18 and 27, related to Enhancing Vienna's Tree Canopy

Mayor Colbert called the public hearing to order at 8:30 PM. All Council were present.

Mayor Colbert reminded everyone that Council will not be voting on the item this evening, nor will there be a discussion. A Conference Session is scheduled for November 13, 2023 to discuss the topic, by which time recommendations from the Planning Commission should have been received.

Mayor Colbert opened the floor for public comment.

Susan Stillman, 213 Ayr hill Avenue, NE

"Thank you for the opportunity to speak in support of adopting a tree ordinance. When I was on the Conservation and Sustainability Commission (CSC) we found that there was nothing in the Town Code for single lot redevelopment, just for subdivisions. We got the Code changed [to ensure] trees would be replaced or there would be a tree credit applied. So that was progress. But now we are seeing that builders are taking down a lot of the mature trees and we are losing the services that the trees provide; an economic service, environmental service of cleaning our air and proving cooling, and, as someone commented earlier, they believe trees help block noise. So I'd like to encourage you to pass a tree ordinance that will indicate tree preservation as first preference. It should closely parallel the Fairfax County tree ordinance because we know that builders already live by that ordinance; they have operated in both venues so we make it more streamlined for them. [The ordinance] should be consolidated in one place to make it easy for folks to know what the rules are. There's an old saw that says 'The best time to plant a tree was twenty years ago, the second best time is now'. The same thing is true of passing a tree ordinance to keep our mature trees. We should have done this twenty years ago but the second best time is now. Thank you."

Mary Ellen Larkins, 317 Church St.

"We used to live on Oak St., SW for nine years and we moved to Church St. in 1986 only because of the tree canopy of the street. It was majestic, it was beautiful, until the light came in (1992) and it changed all our lives and the lives of the trees. There are eleven reasons why Vienna needs to protect our trees;

- 1) Temperature control one tree is equivalent to ten air conditioning units. They can reduce street temperature by more than thirty percent.
- 2) Noise reduction trees can reduce loudness by up to fifty percent;
- 3) Air purity trees remove as astonishing amount of harmful pollutants and toxins from the air. Trees make the air we breathe cleaner;

- 4) Oxygen while absorbing all those pollutants trees are also putting more oxygen back into the environment. Oxygen levels are significantly lower in cities (in comparison to the countryside). Trees help to solve that problem;
- 5) Water management trees absorb huge quantities of water, reduce run off, neutralize the severity of flooding, and make flooding more unlikely altogether not to forget that their roots absorb pollutants and prevent them from feeding back into the city's water supply;
- 6) Psychological health human beings are significantly happier when surrounded by nature rather than a sterile urban environment;
- 7) Privacy a simple point is that trees provide privacy;
- 8) Economics the total economic benefit of urban trees is hard to calculate; there are costs, including the repair of structural damage caused by roots and through maintenance of the trees themselves. But the total economic benefit far outweighs the expenditure;
- 9) Wildlife trees have miniature cities of their own, serving as a habitat for hundreds of different species;
- 10) Light pollution Trees block the light shining down, thereby keeping us and our cities cool:
- 11) Aesthetics trees are just beautiful. Don't you think that trees are just so amazing especially this week and last week?

 So please protect our trees by doing what is right."

Susan Rexroad, 616 Upham Place, NW.

"My husband and I are probably like a lot of you, we love trees. One of the reasons we moved to Vienna was because we love trees. And what's not to love? Trees are beautiful, their shade can lower the heat off the street by fifteen degrees, trees help with soil erosion, they are vital to local and migrating wildlife, and they are a major carbon sink. Planting and maintaining Vienna's trees is in the interest of our health, our infrastructure, our pride in the beauty of our Town to consistently do the right thing. Vienna's tree canopy has been declining, as we know. We need to invest in one of Vienna's major assets – our trees. That's why we support maintaining and strengthening Vienna's tree canopy by adopting the tree conservation ordinance and in particular adopting the Fairfax County standards, as well as employing dedicated personnel to maintain and add to our tree canopy."

Bill Comerford, 206 Battle Ct., SE.

"I have lived in Vienna since 1976 and am speaking as a Vienna resident and also as member of the CSC. One of our major duties is to promote a sustainable community, including a tree protection and replacement program. I'm not here to speak to the details or legalities of either proposal, but I've all the confidence in the world in attorney Brian Land, and in Christina Caplin and the proposal they put forward to the Council. I believe the information in comprehensive. I believe their recommendations are sound, and I believe they lead to the right decision for Vienna. Their recommendations are based on expertise and extensive research into pertinent law and tree ordinances from surrounding jurisdictions, preservation practices and numerous interviews with subject matter experts. I believe that their proposal will be influential and pervasive and should carry substantial weight in your decisions, and those decisions need to be made in favor of tree preservation. I believe that the Town Attorney is being properly conservative and acting in accordance with the authorizing statute, as does the Land/Caplin proposal. However, there are significant provisions that need to be discussed that deal with the operation aspects of the proposal submitted by Land/Caplin. I believe those critical components would have significant impact on our ability to regrow our tree canopy and that the Town is here to listen to what they have to say about preserving tree canopy.

Tonight's hearing can drive actions, collaboration and impetus to move forward rapidly toward a model tree ordinance that is legal, effective and that supports Vienna's recognition as a tree city. I heartily endorse and support incorporating the entirety of the Land/Caplin proposal (Option 1) and encourage you to adopt it as our ordinance for tree preservation."

Pam Keene, 344 Church St., NE

"Much of what I had planned to say mirrors what Mary Ellen said because we are pressing for a favorable adoption of a new tree ordinance. Trees in Vienna are not just decorative elements. They are essential contributors to a healthy environment and a higher quality of life for its residents. As we all know, trees act as natural air purifiers, absorbing harmful pollutants such as carbon dioxide, and releasing back oxygen into our atmosphere. This process helps to improve air quality and makes the air we breathe cleaner and healthier. Trees also act as a natural storm water management system. They absorb rainwater and reduce the risk of flooding. Their roots help prevent soil erosion. Trees provide habitat for birds, insects and other wildlife. Embracing and preserving this natural wonder in our neighborhoods is not just a choice, it's a responsibility that benefits us today and ensures a greener, healthier future for generations to come."

Leah Giovanniello, 317 Broadleaf Dr., NE

"Biologist, entomologist and naturalist, Edward Wilson popularized the term "biophilia" which literally means" love of life". He hypothesized that humans have an innate affinity and biological need for the natural world. I don't believe we need a scientist to tell us that. We all feel it, every one of us in this room feels it in varying degrees. So those of us here tonight and those who signed the petition are not just advocating for, but we're fighting for, the protection and preservation of trees and ecosystems. A healthy and mature ecosystem once destroyed may never recover and certainly not in our lifetime. But the saddest realization of all is that those of us beyond our teenage years remember what the forest used to look like, feel like, sound like. The generations who follow won't have that memory. And that's really sad. We can't undo the decisions that have already been made, decisions that have degraded our forests and ecosystems, our quality of life, but even worse, decisions that have robbed this generation and those to follow of the beauty and majesty of undisturbed forests and ecosystems. A stand of trees left behind after development does not a forest make. So when you make your decision about how to move forward think of the generations coming up behind us and the legacy you are creating and leaving for them."

Bob McCahill, 429 Center St., NE, President of the NE Vienna Citizens Association "Back in January Council set four top priorities for the year, one of which was to address the loss of tree canopy that we've seen in the last ten years (thirteen percent of our total tree canopy equaling one hundred sixty-three acres). I'm sure most, if not all, of you have been to Northside Park. One hundred sixty-three acres equates to more than six times the size of Northside Park – that's a lot of trees. Based on the work of 'Trees in Vienna – a Review of Programs to Help Vienna Preserve and Manage its Tree Canopy' by Brian Land, three primary [opportunities exist to accomplish this];

- Adopt a tree conservation ordinance;
- Form a commission focused solely on trees;
- Establish a tree planting budget and track the number of trees planted.

 This summer a group of concerned citizens met to consider these suggestions, the outgrowth of which was a petition submitted with three hundred signatures, largely due to the work of the people sitting behind me tonight. It mirrors the Land report

and reads:

- 1) Enact the tree conservation ordinance authorized by the Virginia General Assembly and in place in Fairfax County since 1990. Vienna has not, to date, adopted a tree conservation ordinance. We currently have a tree replacement ordinance where builders must submit a plan for replacement of trees, but there is no requirement to preserve, or make an effort to preserve, existing trees. Having an ordinance, in its own chapter of the Town Code as a single ordinance, closely paralleling Fairfax County's tree ordinance will make this ordinance easier to locate, read and understand and will convey the importance of trees in Vienna.
- 2) Establish a tree commission. Vienna does not have a tree commission that is solely focused on trees. A tree commission can, among other things, advise on the planting, design, care and removal of street, park and other public trees and raise community awareness about the importance of trees. Nearby communities, such as Fairfax County, Falls Church, Arlington County and Leesburg have tree commissions. We ask the Town Council to establish a tree commission that will serve and benefit the Town of Vienna.
- 3) Establish a tree planting budget and track and publish the number of trees planted on Town property each year. Every dollar spent on planting and caring for public trees yields benefits that include cleaner air, lower energy costs, etc. We wish for the Town to increase the Town budget.

We are very appreciative of the \$50,000 put forward for the planting of trees. That's five hundred new trees. It's a good start, but you can do better."

Bob Robinson, 515 Creek Crossing Rd., NE

"As you are aware a few years ago there was angst over the loss of Vienna's small town character due to several ugly buildings built along Maple Avenue. In my opinion the continuing loss of so many large one-hundred-year old trees is actually an even greater threat to Vienna's character and quality of life. Watching the mature trees on lot after lot fall to developer's chain saws to build more and more multimillion dollar mansions represents an assault on our collective wellbeing. We advertise ourselves as a tree city but to many of us that designation is a bit strange in a town that lost thirteen percent of its tree canopy over the 2012-2022 decade. And this of course doesn't even count the newly clear cut lots seen in 2023 (of which there are many). Being personal for a moment, a number of us worked very hard to get the National Wildlife Federation certification of Vienna as a town that cares about its environment. So it breaks my heart to see what is happening to the tree canopy that cools our air, reduces our carbon footprint, sustains our birds and other wildlife and, just as importantly, nourishes our soul. For a long time, our approach to tree conservation, by definition, has not been working. For too long we have thrown up our hands, finding excuse after excuse to avoid taking aggressive action to protect the Town's tree canopy. Now we have a tangible, albeit modest, step we can take. I urge the Town Council to pass the Land/Caplin preservation provisions before it."

Sandy Shinn, 511 Kibler Circle, SW.

"In October 2022 you received an eighty-eight page report written pro bono by the Kirkland/ Ellis Law firm and the Town of Vienna's CSC. From that report you learned of the thirteen percent loss of tree canopy from 2011-2021. You tasked Brian Land and Christina Kaplin to come up with a tree ordinance. Since June 2023 you have had a draft of the tree conservation ordinance before you. It has been through the Planning Commission and is now back in your court. As the Town Council dots the I's and crosses the T's on the tree conservation ordinance, please consider what is being done in neighboring jurisdictions. Brian Lands proposal is modeled after the Fairfax County ordinance, with additional language for the bonding of newly

planted trees [gleaned] from the Falls Church tree ordinance. Fairfax County, Falls Church and Arlington all have a dedicated tree commission or tree board. Many nearby jurisdictions have an Urban Forest Plan that budgets for the planting of trees and tracks the trees that are planted each year. Madam Mayor and Town Council, you have known about the loss of tree canopy since October 2022. Like me, you must drive around Town and see that the character of our Town is changing. It went from sleepy ramblers with towering trees to giant houses with little tiny trees. It doesn't have to continue changing in this way. We don't have to lose all the tress. As I worked to gather signatures for the 'Save Vienna's Trees' petition at the Farmers Market, Chilin on Church and Octoberfest, I met very few people who don't like trees. I met an Urban Forester from Fairfax County who couldn't sign because he was not a Vienna resident, but he shook his head and said 'It's a shame what's happening in Vienna.' I met a couple who were relocating to Vienna from New Jersey who said that in the town they came from if a tree was over a certain diameter you had to get permission from the Town to cut it down. Vienna Town Council, all eyes are on you now; pass a robust tree conservation ordinance that saves our mature trees. Do your part for the people of Vienna and future generations. Do it now."

Mark Smith, 216 Tapawingo Rd., SE

"I have nothing to do with this issue as others have tonight. This is the first time I am coming before Council in five to six years, but the arguments seem to make common sense. The development of a private property is a private matter but how it's developed affects public good. Tree canopy is a public good. We inherited that public good. The question is 'How are we going to pass it on to future generations?' Fairfax County is a leader in tree preservation. I encourage you to follow their lead and adopt the Brian Land option.

I do have a question about process. It sounds as if there has been a lot of information back and forth for your consideration already. Will Town Council have a private meeting with the Planning Commission before the decision is made? (Mayor Colbert noted that questions are not typically answered during a Public Hearing, but as this is a clarification, she will respond. November 13, 2023 Town Council will hold a Conference Session to discuss Planning Commission recommendations). I do hope the public will have an opportunity to see the [Planning Commission recommendations]."

Nala Persaud, 550 Windover Ave., NW

"I am the owner of Trace to Zero and a member of CSC. Tress hold within their quiet strength and beauty stories of decades, and for some, centuries. Although fewer of those hold stories of centuries here in Vienna because some have been taken down. The trees we have protect more species and habitats than science has been able to count. They give shelter and shade and as we've heard tonight, all while quietly cleaning the air that we breathe. It's our job to respect them and to leave them be, especially the mature ones. We need to work around them and to buy things and build in ways that cause fewer of them to be chopped down. Here in NOVA we are losing canopy at a very unsettling and unsustainable rate. On my street, Windover Avenue, one lot was taken down in the course of the last month. In a matter of hours, the remnants of mature trees were left on the side in tatters like victims of a Mafia hit. And it's all gone now. I believe there are two more mature trees left on my street to come down. Hopefully they will not.

I speak up as a citizen because the trees cannot. Doing what's right for them is hard but doing what's right has never been easy. I respectfully request, as so many others before me have, the adoption of the conservation ordinance and the creation of a tree commission."

Dr. Maryann Dadlehah, 609 Alma St., SE

"I am here to support Option 1, Tree conservation. My husband and I bought our home behind Wildwood Park at the beginning of COVID in 2020. With mature trees all around our land it was love at first sight for us. Even when we were told to cut our beach tree [to allow for the installation of solar panels] we consulted an arborist to save it. Now we enjoy its shade, never ending birds, butterflies and squirrels year round. Mature trees serve many purposes. They are a source of oxygen, help with rainfall interception and energy conservation, add beauty to the environment and clean our increasingly polluted air. Pollution was identified by the World Health Organization in 2022 as a major source of health problems associated with 6.7 million premature deaths annually.

Vienna is committed to maintaining and enhancing its tree canopy. The Town works with developers and homeowners to protect and preserve privately owned tree canopy. Let's keep our promises.

Because seventy-five percent of all canopy cover in cities is on residential land and vacant lots, loss of trees due to unregulated construction and redevelopment can be especially impactful to communities both ecologically and socially. National results estimated loss of benefits from trees in urban areas is conservatively valued at ninety-six million dollars per year. Preservation of existing trees is one of the few tools available to communities seeking to maintain or increase existing canopy coverage. Research by the USDA Forest Service indicates that for every dollar spent on urban trees, two dollars and seventy cents in benefit is returned. Trees have market appeal and improve a home's performance. According to the University of Washington's research, homes with trees are preferred to homes without trees and can increase a property's value by up to fifteen percent in high income areas with mature trees. The Bank of America Mortgage Group found that eighty-four percent of surveyed real estate agents believe that naturally wooded lots are twenty percent more saleable. The National Association of Home Builders research reported that eighty-nine percent of the polled homeowners want builders to leave as many trees as possible on their lot.

I would like you to vote for Option1. I thank Mayor Colbert for sending the community survey and focusing on trees and their environmental impact."

Brian Land, 504 Ridge Rd. SW

"To preserve existing trees, Vienna should update its existing tree replacement ordinance by adopting a tree conservation ordinance which is authorized under VA Code Sec. 15.2-961.1 that has been in place in Fairfax County since 1990. You are considering two approaches for updating Vienna's tree ordinance. Option 1 would establish a new chapter in the Town Code that would set forth Vienna's tree ordinance. Option 2 would make changes to Chapter 17, 18 and 27 of the Town Code. My recommendation is for Option 1. The tree ordinance should have its own chapter in the Town Code. Why? First, placing a tree ordinance in its own chapter will make it clear that the tree ordinance is intended to apply to all property development. Second, placing a tree ordinance in its own chapter will make the tree ordinance easier to locate, read and understand for developers and builders and citizens of Vienna. Third, Vienna will be taking a similar approach to Fairfax County whose tree conservation ordinance is in its own chapter, Chapter 122 of the Fairfax County Code. Having a chapter dedicated to a tree conservation ordinance will demonstrate that Vienna values trees as an important aspect of the infrastructure and environment of the Town.

Option 1 is based on, and closely matches, Fairfax County's tree conservation ordinance. Why is this sensible? First, the practicality for developers and home builders. Vienna is located in Fairfax County and many, or perhaps most, of Vienna

homebuilders also build in Fairfax County. Having a tree ordinance in Vienna that is similar to that in place in Fairfax County will make it easier for builders to understand and abide by the tree ordinance. Second, Fairfax County's tree ordinance has a long track record. Fairfax adopted its tree ordinance in 1990, thirty-three years ago. I met with a senior attorney in Fairfax County who explained that no one has ever sued Fairfax County to challenge its tree ordinance and no one has otherwise challenged it. Third, individuals we interviewed explained that Fairfax County is considered to be the jurisdiction that is the leader in tree conservation in Virginia. One Urban Forester explained that Fairfax County is using all tools available to conserve trees. Accordingly, there is a benefit in Vienna making use of and emulating Fairfax County's ordinance.

Similar to how Vienna is updating and improving its zoning and subdivision ordinance this is an opportunity for Vienna to update its tree ordinance by adopting a tree conservation ordinance, by placing the tree ordinance in its own chapter in

the Vienna Code, and by establishing a tree commission. I encourage the Town

Christina Caplin, 1218 Kelly St. SW Chairman CSC

Council to do this."

"I'm before you again to stress the importance of preserving Vienna's trees and the opportunity to reverse the decline in canopy. There are so many reasons, environmental and economical, to preserve Vienna's mature tree canopy. You've heard them before and know them by now - reducing air and water pollution, management of storm water, providing habitat, reducing energy usage, controlling climate change. Some of these benefits have even been quantified for you in the millions of dollars annually for Vienna. You have also heard before that preserving tree canopy requires a bipronged approach. Among the strategies needed are regulatory changes, data collection, education and outreach, budget increases for tree maintenance and tree planting on both public and private property. All of these take time, money and effort. Right now you have an opportunity to make a regulatory change that can stem the tide of clear cutting development in Vienna. You can amend Vienna's current tree replacement ordinance and adopt a tree preservation ordinance instead. This preservation ordinance option has been available to you for years and is now before you in concrete form for consideration and adoption. Two versions have been proposed, both of which have been carefully vetted and authorized under Virginia State law. One ordinance is pared down to the basics of Sec. 15.2-961.1 the authorizing statue for a tree preservation ordinance. The other ordinance is more extensive and is authorized under Sec. 15.2-961.1 and other provisions of the State Code. It is based on Fairfax County's long standing preservation ordinance which many local Vienna developers adhere to when building right next door. It also contains bonding provisions similar to those in Falls Church, Charlottesville, Suffolk and Chesapeake. They are based on the Chesapeake Preservation Act and the states subdivision code and also appear to be authorized by the Vienna Town Code itself. The extensive proposed preservation ordinance was developed as part of the pro bono project Brian Land and I worked on for over two years. It is also the culmination of years' prior effort by the CSC to bring attention to the decline in Vienna's tree canopy and the options available to remedy. The ordinance was a collaborative effort with input from Town Staff and Council Members, not simply the rantings of one lone resident. A chronology of these long standing efforts is attached to these remarks. The extensive proposed preservation ordinance was intentionally structured as a stand-alone ordinance rather than part of the zoning code. This comports with other jurisdictions like Fairfax County. A stand-alone ordinance can be easily amended or added to. It also makes the tree requirements easy to find for everyone, including residents who are generally less aware than builders on where to look for the information. Any

needed cross referencing in zoning code sections applicable to development is easily done.

Finally, I just want to set the record straight and plea for the Town Council to act in good faith on this very important issue."

Michele Sullivan, 613 Yeonas Dr., SW

"I am a twenty-five-year resident of the Town of Vienna. I'm here in support of the tree conservation ordinance, Option 1. As a fifth grade teacher at Mantua Elementary School, our green team has planted forty trees and one hundred saplings to help Fairfax County's tree canopy. This spring Dr. Reed, our FCPS Superintendent, came out to plant with us. In her speech she spoke of Dr. Wangari. She draws inspiration from her and her Greenbelt Movement that she started in Kenya to drastically improve their quality of life. This movement, started by one woman, has planted over fifty-one million trees. [I've brought along a] kids book that we use in the classroom. I point out her Greenbelt Movement as something that can inspire the Town of Vienna to adopt a tree ordinance to conserve our exiting trees and plant new trees for ourselves and for future generation."

Ann Brown, 124 Kinsley Rd. SW

"I could reiterate many benefits of trees that have already been outlined this evening. I live on an island of original homes at the top pf Kingsley Rd. One thing I would like Council to consider is that while my lot may be my lot, if the lot next to me or behind me or across the street loses its trees, that will affect my quality of life as well. I have seen that on Kingsley (which was an early part of the redevelopment in Vienna) we have lost many many trees. With a five trees per lot average, we've probably lost at least two hundred fifty trees and there are a number of homes ready for demolishment. So I would strongly support the preservation option in terms of the ordinance. Preservation first, not just replacement. Planting a sapling is a lovely thing but it cannot replace a full growth oak. I'm sometimes struck by the paradox in the Town through reading the Vienna Voice 'to have a dark environment for my fireflies' -which means I need my trees. This then means doing the native planting and I applaud what is being done around Town. But I feel we can't promote being a tree city for the Arbor Foundation and at the same time remove our trees. Also there are numerous places in Town where builders have been creative and they have preserved more trees on lots, sometimes even in the front of the lot. I did sign the petition but I would love to see Vienna provide some type of incentive for builders to preserve trees. Thank you."

With no further speakers, Mayor Colbert called for a motion to close the Public Hearing at 9:20 PM.

A motion was made to close the public hearing. It was further moved to leave the public record open for written testimony until November 3, 2023.

Motion, Council Member Patel; second, Council Member Springsteen. Motion carried unanimously.

6. Regular Business

A. 23-4022 Approve 2024 CIP Plan and CIP and ARPA Reallocation

Mayor Colbert called on Marian Serfass, Director, Finance to present the Item. Responses to questions from Council included the following:

- The Christmas tree has been included in the budget;
- Symphony Park has been funded through others sources;

• The women's restrooms on the Town Green and lighting to the restrooms has been funded through ARPA.

A motion was made to approve the CIP plan and the CIP and ARPA reallocations as presented.

Motion, Council Member Somers; second, Council Member Patel. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Somers, seconded by Council Member Patel, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

B. 23-4014

Request to Approve On-Call Civil Engineering Services Contracts - VA RFP 23-37 (Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd., Urban, Ltd., and Whitman, Requardt & Associates, LLP)

Mayor Colbert recognized Adam Layman, Acting Director, Public Works to present the Item for discussion.

In response to a question from Council, there is no cost overlap with any other Item on the agenda.

A motion was made to approve the On-Call Engineering Services Contract-VA RFP 23-37 to Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd., Urban, Ltd., and Whitman, Requard & Associates, LLP.

Motion, Council Member Somers; second, Council Member Patel. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Somers, seconded by Council Member Patel, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

C. <u>23-4019</u>

Adopt new chapter 18 (Zoning and Subdivision) of Town Code, and repeal current chapters 17 (Subdivisions) and 18 (Zoning) of the Town Code.

Mayor Colbert called on David Levy, Director, Planning and Zoning to present the Item for consideration.

Comments from Council included the following:

- Culmination of a great deal of work by Planning and Zoning and Town Council (both past and present);
- Congratulations to Director Levy and Kelly O'Brien, Deputy Director, Planning and Zoning; The bar for this type of effort has been set by the overall effort and quality of work performed;
- Remind Council that several items were pinned which must still be discussed (many requiring a public hearing); Conference session placed on advanced agenda for February 2024 to begin discussion of the continued work (coincides with discussion of the parking study and the comprehensive plan);
- Suggest compilation of all pinned items for Code revision as soon as possible; Recommend receiving input from outgoing Council Members regarding top issues;
- Appreciate the inclusion of bicycle parking code in the revision.

A motion to adopt the new Chapter 18 of the Town Code, as presented, to replace the

current Chapters 17 and 18 of the Town Code and to adopt the updated Zoning Map, as presented, and further direct the Town Clerk to advertise a Notice of Adoption with an effective date of Jan. 1, 2024.

Motion, Council Member Patel; second, Council Member Somers. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Patel, seconded by Council Member Somers, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member
 Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

D. 23-4017 Request to Approve Cox Franchise Extension Agreement

Mayor Colbert called on Steve Briglia, Town Attorney to present the Item.

A motion was made to approve extension of the cable franchise agreement with CoxCom (Cox) for a period of three years.

Motion, Council Member Patel; second, Council Member Springsteen. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Patel, seconded by Council Member Springsteen, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

E. 23-4025 Set a public hearing for Nov. 13, 2023, for public comment on changes to the Town's Noise Ordinance Sections 10-20.1., 10-44, and 3-11.

Mayor Colbert recognized Col. Jim Morris, Police Chief, Town of Vienna to present the Item for discussion.

A motion was made to set a public hearing for Nov. 13, 2023, for public comment on changes to the Town's Noise Ordinance, Sections 10-20.1., 10-44, and 3-11.

Motion, Council Member Patel; second, Council Member Springsteen. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Patel, seconded by Council Member Springsteen, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

F. 23-4037 Request approval for spending \$236,230 with Kimley-Horn for Park System Master Plan

Mayor Colbert recused herself from discussion of Item 23-4037 due to a family conflict. Mayor Pro Tem Ed Somers led discussion of this Item.

Comments from Council Included the following:

- The revised proposal answered all questions set forth by Council;
- Expectations in the Town are high, but there are costs to those expectations; these must be put forth in writing to provide a road map;

- May wish to consider including a survey distributed through the Town water bill which would capture every Town household; Will discuss viability of this process with Finance Staff;
- Potential exists to sell the Robinson property and use proceeds to fund Parks and Recreation parks projects.

A motion was made to approve the spending of \$236,230 with Kimley-Horn for a Parks System Master Plan as indicated in this report.

Motion, Council Member Anderson; second, Council Member Springsteen. Motion carried unanimously. Mayor Colbert recused.

A motion was made by Council Member Anderson, seconded by Council Member Springsteen, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

 Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers and Council Member Springsteen

Recused:

1 - Mayor Colbert

G. 23-4039

Vienna 2024 Independence Day Celebration and Fireworks Display - Date Selection

Mayor Colbert called on Leslie Herman, Director Parks and Recreation to present the Item for consideration by Council.

Discussion by Council included the concern that pyrotechnic companies are in strong demand and the costs continue to rise. The company employed last year was reliable and should be contracted for July 2, 2024. The Town should continue to strive to hold the celebration on July 4th whenever possible. Mayor Colbert remarked that she has urged the informal gathering of estimates for a July 4th celebration in the future.

A motion was made to schedule the Independence Day Celebration fireworks on Tuesday, July 2, 2024.

Motion, Council Member Somers; second, Council Member Anderson. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Somers, seconded by Council Member Anderson, that the Action Item be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

H. <u>23-4066</u>

Request to Set a Public Hearing for the Proposed 2024 Legislative Agenda

A motion was made to set a public hearing for November 13, 2023 for the proposed 2024 Legislative Agenda.

Motion, Council Member Patel; second, Council Member Springsteen. Motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Council Member Patel, seconded by Council Member Anderson, that the Action Item be approve. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

7 - Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

7. Meeting Adjournment

Mayor Colbert called for a motion to adjourn at 10:10 PM. Motion, Council Member Patel; second, Council Member Springsteen.

7. Meeting Adjournment

Aye:

Council Member Anderson, Council Member Brill, Council Member Patel, Council Member Potter, Council Member Somers, Council Member Springsteen and Mayor Colbert

THE TOWN OF VIENNA IS COMMITTED TO FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT STANDARDS. TRANSLATION SERVICES, ASSISTANCE OR ACCOMMODATION REQUESTS FROM PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ARE TO BE REQUESTED NOT LESS THAN 3 WORKING DAYS BEFORE THE DAY OF THE EVENT. PLEASE CALL (703) 255-6304, OR 711 VIRGINIA RELAY SERVICE FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED.

